Earth Negotiations Bulletin

A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations

B Vol. 9 No. 78 Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development Friday, 6 February 1998
HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE FOURTH SESSION OF ORGANIZATION OF WORK: The Chair affirmed continua-
tion of the structure established at BSWG-3, including two open-
THE AD HOC WORKING GROUP ON ended SWGs and two open-ended CGs. The Co-chairs of SWG-1,
BIOSAFETY which will cover Articles 3-14, are Sandra Wint (Jamaica) and Eric
5 FEBRUARY 1998 Schoonejans (France), and those of SWG-2, which will cover Arti-

cles 1, Ibisand 15-27, are Hira Jhamtani (Indonesia) and John

. ; b : Herity (Canada). The Chair also informed the Plenary of changes in
XYO;kr:?Z%t?ggglpn?gttBe '%ng?itz (?r?e\/\r{r%rﬁ)ir:ne;lr? szlr?:r?% tt\?vg'gzlgfsthe BSWG Bureau, noting the replacement of David Gamble (New
wc?rking Groups (SWGSs) ané; two Contac%Groups (CGs)inthe af galand) with Darryl Dunn (New Zealand). Also, each region had
noon. SWG-1 clarified its work agenda and relationship to CG-1. eviously designated four representatives to ensure regional repre-

- ntation in SWGs. Co-Chairs of CG-1 (Definitions and Annexes)
SWG-2 began negotiations on aspects of transboundary movem%r?& Piet van der Meer (Netherlands) and Gert Willemse (South
handling and transport of Living Modified Organisms.

Africa). Co-chairs of CG-2 (Institutional Matters and Final Clauses)
PLENARY are John Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda) and Katharina Kummer (Swit-

Chair Veit Koester (Denmark) opened BSWG-4. He outlined t#&riand). _ _
goal of a consolidated negotiating text for presentation to the Fourth Given the close linkage between CG-1 and SWG-1, the Chair
Conference of the Parties (COP-4), and reviewed the progress oftffgposed that CG-1 become a sub-group of SWG-1 to enable it to
BSWG over the last two years. He affirmed the mutual desire andmeet in parallel with and report to SWG-1. Koester also noted the
will of delegates to achieve the goals for the meeting and hoped ti€ntion stated at BSWG-3 that CG-2 should eventually become a
BSWG—4 would be successful. legal drafting group. He stressed the need for flexibility and produc-

Hamdallah Zedan, representing the Executive Director of the tivity in all deliberations. Koester informed delegates that Plenary
United Nations Environmental Programme (UNEP), recalled the S€SSIONS would be held on Saturday morning to consider recommen-
enormity of the task facing BSWG at the outset and acknowledgegations of the BSWG to COP-4, and on Monday afternoon to
the challenge of completing work in 1998. He stressed the need f6PASIder progress under each SWG. _ _
precautionary approach and an accommodating spirit in these delib-ETHIOPIA, supported by the EU, noted that the Chair’s consoli-
erations. He highlighted the complementary relationship betweendated “Inf” documents provided a good basis for discussion, but
UNEP guidelines and the protocol on biosafety, and detailed a GldBaprved the right to add to them as necessary. The Chair then intro-
Environment Fund pilot program pwovide assistance on biosafety duced hiside-memoirelealing with recommendations by BSWG-4
to developing countries and countries with economies in transitiote€OP-4, and highlighted the importance of the decisions that COP-
both national and regional levels. 4 must make, including the timing and venue of the special session of

Calestous Juma, Executive Secretary of the Convention on the COP to adopt the biosafety protocol. He also noted the need for
Biological Diversity (CBD), emphasized the importance of the ~ COP-4 to decide what should occur after adoption of the protocol.
B%\]NhG’s work ig balancing bter}efitfsharlung frotlr_n néot%ern tkeCh_nOIO@UB-WORKING GROUP 1
gCingugS%r\]/gt\4: ?r?t\a”ergr?g;n t%g 3esaatljl?rt1}g fo?guOFl’r]Aef; ad&ergsst?r)]/és"snuke_s Co-chair Sandra Wint (Jamaica) convened the first meeting of

ages with other activities under the CBD, including benefit-sharinéwe'1 in the afternoon and outlined the procedure for work. She

Delegates to the Fourth Meeting of the Open-erfiéHoc

D ; > . announced that NGOs may participate as olessbut without the
technology transferén-situconservation and technical and scientifigen 'y, jntervene, negotiate or participate. She reiterated that CG-1
cooperation; and financial resources for this and future meetings. 014 act as a su’b—group to SWG-1 and |c;roposed that CG-1 meet as

The Chair introduced the Provisional Agenda (UNEP/CBD/  yfien as necessary, workinggarallel with SWG-1. The Co-chair
BSWG/4/1) which was adopted without discussion. He listed two tne requested that regional groups nominate two representatives to
objectives for BSWG-4: to submit consolidated draft negotiating texdsist the Secretariat with drafting text if it became overburdened.
to the COP-4 to allow for the requisite six month period prior to nge delegations expressed concern over further subdividing due to
convening an extraordinary session of the COP to adopt a Protocgle of delegations. One delegation suggested that the establishment
and to provide such text for continued negotiations at BSWG-5. of o extra drafting team was premature and decision on the matter
Koester presented Chairman’s Notes (UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/Inf. 155 postponed. Co-chair Eric Schoonejans (France) proposed and
and Inf.1/Add.1 for SWG-1, and Inf.2 for SWG-2) asaninitial  participants adopted the following order for addressing articles under
attempt to synthesize similar options in the draft text. consideration: Articles 4 and 5, dealing with notification and

This issue of th&arth Negotiations Bulleti@ <enb@iisd.org> is written and edited by Stas Burgiel <swb@igc.org>, Aarti Gupta <aarti.gupta@yale.edu>, Lgura Ive
<laurai@iisd.org> and Teya Penniman <teyamp@open.org>. The Editor is Pamedk, CtheB. <pam@iisd.org> and the Managing Editor is Langston James "Kimo'| Goree
VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The sustaining donors of Belletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development Cooperation, the Government of Canada and the United States
America (through USAID). Funding for the French version has been provided by ACCT/IEPF, with support from the French Miuispgration and the Québec Minigtry
of the Environment and Wildlife. THBulletin can be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. 1ISD can be contacted at 161 Portage Avenue East, 6th F|
Winnipeg, Manitoba R3B 0Y4, Canada; tel: +1-204-958-7700; fax: +1-204-958-7710. The opinions expresdeatth tegotiations Bulletiare those of the authors and do

not necessarily reflect the views of 11ISD and other funders. Excerpts frdsattieN egotiations Bulletimay be used in non-commercial publications only and with appropriate
academic citation. For permission to use this material in commercial publications, contact the Managing Editor. Electamsiof#reBulletinare sent to e-mail distributipn
lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW-server at <http://www.iisd.ca/linkages/. The satellite image was takéd8/84.99:06:49 UTC from 100000 km abdepan,
Copyright © 1998 The Living Earth, Inc. http:/livingearth.com. For further information on ways to access, support orteeBtath Negotiations Bulletinsend e-mail fo
<enb@iisd.org>.




5 Earth Negotiations Bulletin
Friday, 6 February 1998 SR e Vol. 9 No. 78 Page 2

response for AlA; Articles 6 and 7 on the decision procedure and HANDLING, TRANSPORT, PACKAGING AND LABEL-
review of decision under AlA; Article 8 on natification of transit;  LING (Article 17): Delegations differed as to whether the protocol
Article 3 on application of AlA; Articles 9, 10 and 11 on simplified should establish international standards on the handling, transport,
procedure, subsequent imports and bilateral and regional agreemeyeiekaging and labelling of LMOs, or whether each Party should esta
and articles 12, 13 and 14 on risk assessment, risk management afish its own appropriate measures. Some delegates cited the need fo
minimum national standards. He cited the documents for discussioti@ar standards to preclude development of non-tariff barriers to trad
UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/3, UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/Inf. 1, UNEP/CBD/ One delegate suggested that references to LMOs should always
BSWG/4/Inf. 1 Add. 1, and UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/Inf. 5. The Co- include the words “and products thereof.”
chair then proposed that substantive negotiations would begin the  COMPETENT AUTHORITY (Article 18): Many delegations
following morning. noted the potential for further consolidation of draft text regarding the
scope and role of competent authorities and focal points, but no
CONTACT GROUP ON DEFINITIONS AND ANNEXES onsensus emerged on how to achieve it. One delegation highlighte

CG-1metin the afternoon to begin discussion of definitions ar.‘(fhe need for detailed provisions, noting that many developing coun-
annexes. The Co-chair clarified the group’s mandate and its relatiog,

ship to SWG-1. He emphasized that CG-1 was a technical group, es lack strong institutionatructures.

which would not negotiate text. Its mandate was to produce simpleCONTACT GROUP ON INSTITUTIONAL MATTERS AND

unambiguous, scientifically sound and internally consistent text onFINAL CLAUSES

definitions and annexes, as requested by SWG-1. CG-1 accepted doclihe Contact Group on Institutional Matters and Final Clauses

ment UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/6, contained in UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/ (CG-2) opened its first session on Thursday afternoon under the co-

Inf.5, as the basis for its work. chairmanship of John Ashe (Antigua and Barbuda) and Katharina
The group then began discussions on Annex 1 dealing with “Infstammer (Switzerland). Delegates used the Secretariat's Compilatiot

mation required in order to obtain Advance Informed Agreement” of Government Submissions of Draft Text on ltems Other than Arti-

(AlIA). Issues debated included whether some information require-cles 1, Jbis, and 23-27 (UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/3) as a basis for further

ments listed in Annex 1 were more appropriate for the Annex on riskonsolidation of text on articles addressing Financial Mechanism anc

assessment (RA) parameters. Delegates also discussed whether &eRdurces and COPs.

should precede or follow an AIA procedure. There was tentative agreeFINANCIAL MECHANISM AND RESOURCES (Article 28):

ment that the informational requirements for an AIA should include @G-2 retained two options, both of which would establish the opportt

RA, whose exact nature remained to be determined. Delegates alsgity for developed countries to provide financial and technological

considered whether information on insurance and liability was appresources to developing countries. One option further specified that i

priate for inclusion in the AIA notification. Some delegates noted thfdancial mechanism and institutional structure defined under Article

liability issues were being addressed elsewhere in the protocol, whilg (Financial Mechanism) of the CBD shall also serve the purposes

others emphasized the importance of information on liability in ordehe protocol.

to provide AlA. CONFERENCE OF THE PARTIES (Article 29): Regarding

SUB-WORKING GROUP 2 the relationship of the COP to the protocol, the group deferred furthe

Co-Chair Herity opened the first session of SWG-2 on Articles 1gfocussmn on this issue, pending review of the Montreal and Kyoto

. = L tocols which address similar issues.

bisand 15-27. He noted a Bureau decision on NGO patrticipation : )
granting them observer status with “no right to intervene or speak.” , SIGNATURE (Article 37): Delegates approved the proposed
Further, NGOs could be removed from discussions at the request §aft text. _
any Party. The Secretariat introduced relevant backgt documents __ RATIFICATION, ACCEPTANCE, OR APPROVAL (Article
for SWG-2: UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/2;: UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/3; 38)andACCESSION (Article 39): Delegates agreed to remove the
UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/Inf.2; UNEP/CBD/BSWG/4/Inf.4; and UNEPProposed articles as they essentially repeat those contained in the
CBD/BSWG/4/Inf.5. CBD. _

UNINTENTIONAL TRANSBOUNDARY MOVEMENTS ENTRY INTO FORCE (Article 40) andWITHDRAWAL
(Article 15): One government suggested consolidated text on imméArticle 42): The Chair approved formation of a group headed by
diate notification of affected Parties regarding unintentional trans- Canada to note all references to protocols in the CBD to assist furthe
boundary movements and immediate action by Parties of origin to deliberations on these articles.
minimize negative impacts of such movements. One regional RESERVATIONS (Article 41): CG-2 retained two options on
economic integration unit, supported by a number of countries, ~ reservations: no reservations may be made to the protocol; and dele
favored providing notification to any affected Party or non-Party to tion of the article.
include all relevant information as listed in Annex | (Information
Requirements for AlA). Another delegate supported text including IN THE_ CORRIDORS . . o
releases of aquatic LMOs and a provision for affected Parties to While some delegates felt that socioeconomic and liability issues
request assistance from Parties of origin to minimize adverse impaf#3'e the most pressing, others expressed their preference to addres
One participant suggested merging Articles 15 and 16 (Emergency€Se concerns in other fora, preferring a streamlined instrument for
Measures). One developed country supported elimination of the ~information sharing on transboundary movement of LMOs. Some
Article, noting relevant provisions in CBD Article 14 (Impact Asses@articipants wore buttons reading “no liability, no protocol,
ment and Minimizing Adverse Impacts). expressing their steadfast position on the issues of liability and

EMERGENCY MEASURES (Article 16): Several delegations ComPensation. Chair Koester met with NGOs regarding the Bureau
spoke against provisions on emergency measures, fatenglia, deC|5|on§)'n pa}lrt|C|pat|on of NGOs, where the question was raised of
that CBD provisions covered the issue, and that such measures sh‘HﬂﬁfﬁerS right” to sple?kdreferrid ,:0 the %“V'Itet%‘? %r the ability tﬁt ot
be left to national legislation. Several African delegates favored fsptea .Bsc{/r\/né szcutﬁ € COBnDW a l{qrece entthis decision might setT
retaining a separate provision to ensure notification of unintended uture and other meetings.
transboundary movements, especially for countries without national
measures. Other proposals included one to merge Articles 15 and 16,
and to incorporate Article 16 into the provisions of Article 13 (Risk
Management).



